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THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
TRUSTEES’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of
the charitable company for the period 1 September 2017to 31. August 2018. The annual report serves
the purposes of both a trustees' report, and a directors’ report under company law.

The accounts have beén prepared in accordance with the: accounting polices-set out in note 1'to the
accounts and comply with the charitable Company's Memorandum and Articles of Assotlation, the
Compan!es Act-2006, the Statement of Recommended Practice 2015, “Accounting and Reporting by
Charities™ and the Académies Accounts Direction. 2017/18 issued by the ESFA:

The trust operated 3:primary phase.academy in Kent:and:Medway: The Pilgrim School (a Church of
England Primary with Nursery), St Margaret's at’ Troy Town Church-of England Primary School with
Nursery(SMATT) and St Mark's.C of E Primary Schoo). Its academies havé pupil capacity of 210, 210,

140 with a total of 560. In the schools’ ‘census:on 18" January 2018 pupil numbers were 209 at Pilgrim,
206 at SMATT and. 127 at St Mark’s totalling'542.

Structure, Governance.and Management
Constitution

The Academy Trust was incorporated as a Company on 18 September 2016 and is a company limited
by guarantee and an exempt - chanty The charitable company’s memorandum and articles of
‘association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The trustees ‘act as the trustees for the charitable activities of The Pilgiim Multi Academy Trust and-are
also the directors of the.charitable company for the: purposes of company-law. The charitable company
is known as The Pilgrim Mutti Academy Trust.

Details of the trustees who served throughout the year are included in the Reference and Administrative
Details on page 1.

Members’ Liability-

Each member of the charitable: company .undertakes to contiibute to the assets of the charitable
company in the eventof it being wound up while. they are.a membeér, orwithin'one year afterthey cease
to be a member, such amount as: may bé required,. not exceeding £10°, for the:debts and liabilities
contracted before they ceased to be a member

*As required in the academy trust's funding agreement/memorandum and Articles of Association.
Trustees’ iIndemnities

Cover for third party liability and. all indemnities is provlcled through the Academies’ punchase of
membership of Risk Protection’ ‘Arrangements from. DfE. There were no- claims during the year 1
Septembeér 2017 to 31 August 2018.

No third party indemnities have been provided by the Trust to any third parties on behalf of any of the
‘trustees.
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THE PILGRIM MULTI.ACADEMY TRUST
TRUSTEES’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Principal Activities

“The Pilgrim. Multi Academy Trust’s Objects are:to:advance for.the ptiblic: ‘benefiteducation in the United

Klngdo" , 0N pat icular ‘but -without prejudice. to
ing on, managing-and developin

lum. T ese will lqclude Church of Engla‘

cademies which shall offer a’broad:and balanced
' 8 fesignated as :such, which ‘shall be

u
generally and in partrcular ifi relatlon to arrangmg. ‘
having regard to: -any advice.| issuad: by the Diocesan:Boar
with- or without ‘& designated religious character; but 'in rel on to each of the Academles to
recognlse and support their individual ethos whethier-or not.désignated Church of England

Méthod:of Recruitment and Apnoi‘ntment}or Eléction of trustees

The. Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust has recruited. Directors viko
~able 1o lead and manage the: busmess of the Tiust. P

to the Members to eonﬁrm that they agree wrth and con ron’ the: appomtment

The Board of Directors annually reviews: lteeffectlveness :and skills setand recommends the:

recruitment ‘dnd appointment:of directors as-a result of th process “The.Trust has: recrurted in
lme with its skills audit and is full, as. of the 1 September 2018; in terms of the Articles of
,Assoclatron :

There are 3 t‘rst Directors who are named in:the ‘Atticles 6f ‘Association-and:were appomted by:
Members The Chief Executive Officer is an- ex-ofﬁeto director’ for the perlod of their being in: pest

As: lard ‘out.in the. Artlcles -of Assocratron

‘The nuitiber of Directors-shall ‘be:notless than. three, buf (unless otherwise determined by ordinary
reselution) shall not be- subject ‘toiany.maximum.
The Members appoint'a minimum of five Directo e Local Governing Bodies appoint Parent
Ggvemors, hence.in.accordance with-the Arti aclation there is:no requirementto appoint
Parent Directors; although there maybe Dtreet -who dre glso parents of children in: theAeeclemy

Those: Directors who are’ -appointed: by Membe -caiy, with the agreement of the Diocese, appoint

co-opted: Directors. Future Directors:shall be. appomted or elected, as.the case may: be, under.the.
Articles of Association.

Appointment of Directors,

The Members shall-appoint.a:minimum-of 5 Directors:

As a Church Trust the RDBE appomt 25% of Directors- 2)

The Members shall ensure that the total number of Directors. includlng the Chief Executive Officef
who are employees of the. Cempany doés not éxceed 25% of the total number of Dtrectors

Currently The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust has 3 Local Goveining Bodies which have two élected

parent governors: ag-part of its governing body The parent. govemors are elected as. detailed in
‘the extract from-the ‘Articles of Association below::

e generality of ‘the’ foregoing by esleblrshmg,'

ts of+ the Church of. England both -

‘have the experience -and skills.to be:
‘candidates complete a skills audit -
he Board then discuss the candidate -
rd is then'made. The:Board aiso-writes'




THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Parent Directors

In circumstances where the Directors have not appomted Local Goveming Bodies in respect of the.
Academies as envisaged in Article 701A thére shall be a minimum of 2 Parent Directors and
otherwise such number as the Members shall decide who shall be appointéd or elected ‘in
accordance with Articles 54 - 56.

Parent Directors and Parent-members of the Local’ ‘Governing Bodies or Advisory Bodies shall be
elected or appointed by the parents of ragistered pupils.at one or more of the Academies and each
must be a parent atthe time -when heis elected or appointed.

Notwithstanding Article 53, if no parents put themselves forward for élection the number of Parent
Directors and Parent members. of the Local Governing Bodies or Advisory Bodies required shall
be made up by Parent Directors.and Parent members: appointed by the Directors.

The Directors shall make all necessary arrangements for, and determine. all other matters relating
to, an election of the.Parent Directors or Parent menibers of Logal Governing, Bodies or Advisory
Bodies, including any question of whetherapersonisa parent of aregistered pupxl atthe Academy.

Any elecﬁon of the Parent Directors or Parent members:of the Local Governing ‘Bodles or Advisory
Bodies which is contested shau ‘be held by secrét ballot,

In-appointing a Parent Director or Parent. member ofaLocal Governing Body or Advisory Body the
Dirgctors shall appoint a person who:is the parent of 4 registered pupil at an Academy; or where it
{s not.reasonably practical to do.so, -a person who-is the parent.of a child of compulsory school
age.

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer shall be a Director for as long-as sthe remains in office as such.

Co-opted Directors

The:Directors. dppointed. under Article 50 with the consent of the Diocesan Board- of Education may
appoint up to 2 Co-opted Directors for such:term (iot" éxceeding- four years)-and otherwise upon
such conditions as they shall think fit. A 'Co-opted: Director' means a person who is appointed to
be a. Director by being Co-opted by Dxrectors who have not themselves been so appointed. In
accordance with Article 50A; The, Directors. may not:co-opt an-employee of the Company as a Co-
opted Director if thereby the number of Directors ' who are employees of the Company. would
exceed one third of the total number of D:rectors including the Chief Executive Officer.

Term of Office
The term of:office for any. Director (other thian Co-optéd Directors under Article 58) shall be four

years, save.that this time limit-shall nét: apply to the Chief Executive Officer. _Subject to remaining
eligible to be a particular type-of Director, any Ditector' may be re-appointed or re-elected.
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A Director.shall cease:to hold offit

Resignation and Removal

A Director shall .cease to hold office if He.resigns: fils:office:by notice fo the Company (but-only-if: at
least thrée Directors will remain-in. ofﬁoe when the notlce of resignation.is to take effect). T

A Director shali cease to hold office if he.is.removed by thé person or persons whe appomted hlm

“This Article does: not-apply in.respect of a: Parent Ditector:

Where a Director résigns ‘his office or is: Femoved from: afﬁce the Director or, where fie'is:temoved.
from office, those renoving-him shall give writter notice thereof to the:Clerk..

Disqualification of Directors.

Na person-shall be quahﬁed to be-a Director untess fie is- aged 18-0r over-at the daté of his election
or appointinent. No current: pupll orcurrent: studernit of: any of the. Academies shall 'be.& Director:

A.Director shall cease. to hold office if he becdries incapable.by reason of' iliness or injury. of
managing or administering his own. affairs.

:if he 1s absenit:Without the permission of the Directors fromall
their ‘meetirigs held. within a period: of six: months and the Directors resolve that ‘his ‘office: be.
vacated.

A person shall be.disqualified from holdifig or:continiirig. to:tiold:office.as-a.Director if:

his estate has been sequestrated and‘the -sequestration has not been dlscharged .annulled or.
reduced; or

he:is the S'Ub'ject of a-bankruptey restrictions‘order or:an-interim order.

A person shall be disqualified from holdmg or contmuing 1o hold office as-a; Director ‘at-any:time
when he-is subject to:a disqualm“ tion order rd disqualification undertaking under the:Company
Diréctors Disqualification Act 198t 7 made under section: 429(2)(b) of the: Insolvency
Act 1986 (failure to pay under-coynty court. administration: order).;

A Director shall cease to hold offi ce,nf' he. .ceases to be-a Director by virtue-of :any provision inthe:
Compafiles Act 2008 or is disqualifie om actmg ag:a frustee by virtye -of section 178 of the
‘Charities Act 2011 (or-any-statutory re-enactmerit or. rmodification of that provision):

A person shall be disqualified.from holding or- continuing to holid office.as a Directorif hé has been
removed from the office of chanty trustee or trustee-for-a charity. by an 6rder made by the Charity
Commission or the High Court ‘on the grounds of any misconduct or mismanagement in the
‘administration.of the charity-for- which he was.responsible orto which he'was privy, or which he by

hi§ conduct-contributed-to.or facmta’ted

A person shall be dlsquallﬂed from holding oi- oontmumg to.hold.office as:a Director where-he has,

at any time, been convicted of any Timinal offence, excludinig:any: that have. been spent urider the

Rehabllltatlon of Offenders: Act 1974 as amended and exciuding any offence for which the

maximum sentence is.a fine'ora lésser séntence ‘except where:a person | has: been convicted of
any offence which falls under sectxon 178 of the Charities Act:2011.
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After the first. Academy has opened, a person shall be disqualified fromi holding or continuing to
hold office. as a Director if he has not provided to the chairman of the Directors a criminal records
certificate at.an enhanced disclosure level urider.section 113B of the Police Act1997. in the event
that the:certificate discloses any information which would in the opinion of either the chairperson
or the.Chief Executive Officer confirm their unsuitability to work with childien that person shall be
disqualiﬁed if a dispute arises as to whether a person shall be disqualified, a réferral shall be made
to the Secretary of State to determine the matter. The determination of the Secretary of State shall

be-final.

Where, by virtue of these Articles 2 person becomes disqualified from holding; ot continuing to
hold office -as-a Director; and he is, or is proposed, to become such a Director, he shall upon
becoming so disqualified give written-notice of that fact to the Clerk.

Articles 88 to 74, Articles 77 to 79.and Articles 97 to 98:aiso apply to any méiriber of any committee
of the Directors, including a Local Governing Body, who is nota. Director.

Policies and Procedires Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

Trustees bring their key skills and experierice to the Board, but may have limited experience of how
-Academy Trusts operate and the roles and responslbilihes of the Trust Board and Local Govering

Bodies.

Upon the offer of appointment being accepted, the Director is required ‘to complete and submit a
Disclosure and Barring Service form. Once the.enhanced check i is received and checked, the Director
is formally appointed.

When a Director Is appointed they undergo an induction programme which includes faniiliarisation.
with the Academies within The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust and their individual characteristics. They
receive an indyction pack which includes.key:documents to read as listed:

Articles of Association
‘Schernes of Delegation
Master Funding Agreement
Supplemental Funding Agreement
Trustee Code of Conduct
Academies Financial Handbook
The Pilgrim MAT Financial Procedures Manual
Governance handbook
Keeping Children Safe in Education Il
The Pilgrim MAT ‘Structure Chart with ' Names.
Last year's Board minutes
Last year's CEO reports-
Last2 LGB minutes from trust schools

They are given; a Local Authority e=mail address for Trust communications; a log on.for Governor Hub
so that they can access. up to date. information and book onto training for Governors; training in
safeguarding, including the Prevent Module, links to the Trust Academy websites; a list of Local
Governing Body governors; copies of the Ofsted framework and. safeguarding framework and the
opporturiity to mest with the Chief Executive Officer and to visit Academies in the Trust.

The new Director is mentored by. an experienced Director who will support them in developing their
skills and sigripost training as'needed.
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Organijsational:Structure

The Board' of Directors is ltimately responsible to the: Members: and the ‘Secrétary. of ‘State, for
Education for the performance of Tha Pilgrim-Multi Academy Trust:and its academies. The directors
‘of the Trustand'have the:uitimate: decision makmg authonty ;

are- responsnble for the strategic directi
This is exercised by the directors gh’ strategic. planning: whlch details the vision; putpose-. and
objectives of the Trust-and settmg of pelicy it:is managed: tnrough business and financial plannlng.

budget ‘monitgring, performance management, the setting of standards: and the implementation of”
‘quality management processes.

The Chief Executive Officer implements the:decisions of the directors.and'is responsible. for the day to
day operations of the Trust, The Chief Executive. Officer-operates:within.the limits of the Trust's policies
and-procedures.as approved by

To.ensure financial scrutiny.and oversigfit, the Trust: has-afinance comniittee with'the appropriate levels
of delegation to undertake such-sciutiny and, oversight.. For the. purposes of internal control, review of

systems; and compliance with leglslatxon andintemal systems and pglicies, the finance comnuttee acts '
as audit committes, with appropnate tarms of reférence. The:committée monitors:the systems: and

opecatxons of the Trust and réviews the more detailed angd independent intemal‘audit:-work. of a firm of
accountants retained for these purposes as well as the work of the Trust’s auditors The:membership:of
this committee is detalled in the Reférence and Administrative sectlon

Alocal govemmg body undei'an agreed scheme;of. ' delegation: operates the Trust's academy. The Local
Goverriing:Body is a comtmttee of the Board of Directors. The.diréctors have: délegatedto the Local
Goveming Body of each- acad y the powers and-résponsibilities:détailed in their respective schemes
of dslegation, which were:approved by the directors: Unless a matter is identifiad.as ‘strategic or
lity for the - -academy in question is

specifically reserved. to the dlrectors all power .and. respol

is:atliberty to delégate:its powers to the Haadteacher by means
gives the Headteacher the responsibiiity and: the: commensi

g powers to undertake ‘the internal

Headteachér carries out-these: Tesponsibilities: in- conjunction wi
scheme of delegation can be fotirid in the Reference and Admiinistrative sectton

Although not part of the Trust's formal structure, the Chief Executive Officer chiairs the Management
Group which consists- of all the Headteachers and the Fmance Ofﬁcer(as required). This operational
group is the lynchpin in achieving'the- 1mp1emen'etwn of the Trist's strategy, policies and procedures.

In order to ensure cohesion and proper systems, the Local Governing | Bodies are. required to implement
the policies and procedures laid down by the.directors. The Trust monitors the. actlvities of the- -academy
through the provision of Local Governing Body minutes, educational data, fihancial information and
intefnal systems reviews, which are reviewed: by. the. Board of Dirsctors, . finance (including audit)
committes as. appmpnate

The Trust provides same central services; the:acaderies must:use the Trust's-audited accounts and
company secretanal ‘services, mcludlng clerking“and. centrally procured consultants/contractors for
human resources; payrall services and finance: services via the. intetim Chief Finance Officer (a
Business MEmager has been appomted for_September 2018) The Trust isa chanty and all such

to receive a contribution to these central costs from the. academles

e Board of Directors:and the powers delegated to them The Chief. :
Executive-Officer-is the Accounting,-Ofﬁeer

 { cal rning Body including the. expenditure of funds allocated to the. academy .
w:thin the limits agreed in. the scheme of delegation:and-financig| handbook. The Local Governing-Body .
@ written scheme of delegation. This.

‘the academy so as to.ensure that its: day-tp-day bperatuons can-be undertaken. The .
 the: leadership team. A copy. of the




THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key managément personnel

Pay and remuneration for key management personnel is set  using the school teachers pay . and
conditions document and guidance on school teachers pay and conditions. Each Headteacher has-a
pay scale range of 7 points linked to the group size.of their school. The Chief Executive Officer pay
point has.been determined using the.National Joint Council Recommendations for Local Government.
All Headteachers and the Chief Executive Officer: (CEO) are subject to perforrance management: The
Trust may commission an experienced external.assessor, who supports the process-for the CEO and
all Headteachers. This ensures. that there are high expectations and consistent challenge across the
Trust Academies throughout the performance management process. The Headteacher performance
tanagement is in line with their school's: Scheme of Delegatxon. the CEO leads the process and
provides independent advice. for Local govemors -and Trustees. CEO performance management is
delivered by a minimum of two Directors with the.external assessor to support the process, if required.
In all cases, there is a mid-year review. Following compleﬁon and full review of the performance
management cycle, the parnel maéinbers make' a recommendauon on pay awards ‘and these are
considered by the Trustees acting as-a pay decisions committée. Deputy Headteachers and Assistant
Headteachers who are also senior léaders.are- performance managed by the Headteachers who make
a recommendation to the pay-decisions committee.on pay.awards.: All teéachers and key management
personnel complete their appraisal by 31 October and receive. written confirmation of their salary 30
November.

The Trust is made up of;

The Pilgrim Church of Englarid Primary: School- converted 1 Dacember 2018
St Margaret‘s at Troy Town C of E Primary School convened 1 September 2017
St Mark's € of E Primary School converted 1 November 2017

‘Trade Union Facility Time

Relevant union officlals

Number of employees who were relevant union Full-time equivalent employee number
officials during the relevant period
0 0
Parcentage of time spent on facllity time
| Percentage of time Number of Employees
0% 0
1% - 50% 0
51% --98%. 0
100% 0
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
| Total Cost of facility time £0
Total Pay bill £2:080k
Percentage of the totdl pay bill spent on facility 0%
time
Paid trade union activities:
Time speht on paid trade union activities as a 0%

percentage of total paid facility time hours.
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Related Parties and other Connedted Charitiésiand Organisations

"The Trust is-an: educational establit shriight’ cutrently consistfng of:three acadernies; which operate
lndependently (n relatien to the v}sw_n of educatuon to the Ieamers that awend the academles The

In furtherance. of its- religious objectwes the academies within the Trust are a!so involved in the.
‘Rochester: Diocesan Family of S Is and the: Medway Anglican School Heads parthership. These:
are.voluntary -collaborations t6- promote the .Church:of England religious athos within schools and do:
not-of themseives impact on‘the- operations of the. Trust.

The academies are also members of & local: consartia/collaboration. groups who meetiregularly to work:
in-pértnership:to seek out-and.ado t best practice:to-raise standards.and improve:outcomes:for pupils.

The: Trust requires: all its. Membets; Difectors; Governors:and: Staff to completea business interests
form at least annually: This-assis! identifying related parties: elther in of beyond:the Trust.
Mr John Constanti (Member) is: -an employee of Rochester:Diocese, which Is.a. connected party.

The Pilgrim Trust - Declarations. of Interest:2017-18

‘Name  ‘Governor TermFromTemTo "‘56ec|araﬁ'6r{6'ffiﬁt'éréef
L i
Julie Aylward 1Member 19°Sep '20'.-16 1June 2018 Mlmster “for BorstalTrustee atA
, ‘ ‘Action for Borstal Community ¢

‘Spouse - Pilgrim School LGB/.

e - oo, ... 'RESIGNED .
’Jenmfer Fak.  Member 19 Sep 2016
Yvonne Poynter ‘Member 49 Sep 2016 .
'Incorporated "Member ‘19 Sep 2016 ‘Mr anh Constanti Ditector of.;;
.Rochester ' -Education for RDBE
:Dlocesan Board of :
fEducatlon R
er John Se!lers Member ‘ ‘None )
‘Revid ‘Anne: Trustee. 19'Sep 2016 18 Sep2020 EN,One-'

Bennett

.or Kate Bradley ':Trustee o 1 Jun 2017 31 May 2021 Governer at Meadows Pre-school "
MrMichaelSmith Trustes  6Dec2016 6 Dec 2020 Education Consuitant ;
Mis JanetTaylor CEQ ~ 1Dec2016  iNone
‘Harnet Thorneloe frustee o :22\Sep.«20‘]_7 21Sep2621 Thorneloe &Co Solxcltors (Panner)

iconverted to Hallet & Co Sohc:tors
from May2018

er Mark Wilkkes TTrustee 19.50p 2016 18 Sep 2020

Mrs Brenda Wood Trustee "~ 1Jun2017 31 May 2021 Andy Wood - Handyman - Bunldlng
: Mamtenance (Husband)

-10-



THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
TRUSTEES’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Pilgrim-School - Declarations of Interest 2017-18

Name ~ .Govemor Term From

,;Type

;'»M'ré:J"A”gul'{i»Allotey;Pappoe :Parent 16 Dec.2013

.govemar:

MrAAyward  Trustee  .1Dec2016

-Appointed
: govemor

éMmRGaleé;éékér 7 'Parent 1BDec2013

‘(Vice Chair) -govemor 17 Dec 2017

‘Trustee:
Appoirited
:governor

Mr J Garvey " Trustee  1Dec2016
(Chair) :Appointed

:govemor

MsMJefreys  Trustee  1Dec2018

.Appointed
_governor

MrsJlamey  Trustee  1Dec2016

:Appointed
“govemor.

Mrs A Mepsted " o ‘;Headteach'er ASept2017
MrJ Damelsen fStaﬁ govemor 29 Sept 2017
‘Mr M Fntchett ‘Parent '4Jan2018

governor

MsKTaylor  Pament | 4Jan2018

‘governor

-':.‘Terin TO'
';."14 Dec.2017

30 Nov. 2020.
-(Resigned
~July 2018)

14 Dec 2017
16 Dec 2021

30 Novi2020
30 Nov 2020
‘30 Nov. 2020

128 Sept 2021
"3 Jan2022

iiana0z

' Declaration of
-_'.lnt'er'est

:None

:Sbouéé'-' Pilgﬁm Multi

12 Academy Trust
: Member

Teacher a't" - St

‘Margarets at Troy
:Town1Sept 2017

None

‘Governor  at St

Margaret’s at Troy

:Town
:None

j’None
None
None

None

-11 -
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Mrs R Lock Staff govemor
Mlss TLTrustee | .2Mar2017 2 Mar2021

St Margaret's at Troy Town — Declarations of Interests 2017-2018

‘Namé  ‘Governor  :Term FromTermTo
; Type. :

‘SusClaike  Trustes  i1Sep2017 1Sepzoz1 )

Appointed
;governor

'MrR Callanah :

i

'r

O = S U T TR RN
i

‘Mrs :4 Det 2014,
.Dispinseri . :

MsM Jefreys ‘Trustee:  i1Sep2017  :31Aug202t ;¢

.Appointed.
‘governor

MS L Jobuhg ) Head:each’ér

rApr2017
"'13 an 2017

Morumer -Appointed
. _ govemnor -
{MsC Napier ‘Par
{Chair) igovernor

NsRWels  Tusien eDecaois 18 Nov2oi7

:Appointed ;
_.igovemor .

42,980 2621 Bt

21 Dec:2016. 20 Dec 2020

' Troy Town

 Declaration Of Interest

‘Nane

‘Govemor at St Margaret's at Troy:

Town

N LR LT

I work at Strood Academy;
‘I have 2 children at St Margaret's’ at!

iLogal Authonty Serwces
(Resigned)
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St Mark’s C of E Primary School - Declarations of Interest 2017-18

Name Governor  TermiFrom TemTo  :Declaration Of interest
e . Type R D
MrsFBall  Parent 23 Mar 2015° 22 Mar'2019 Nons
‘Mrs T Beadle :Staff '23 Mar 2015. .22 Mar2019 ’ane
MrJ Bassett ;Headteacher -1 Nov2017 - None
Mrs ETrustee  1Nov2017 31Aug2021 None
Haddaway Appoinited .

. .governor
Mr C McGarry Trustee 1 Nov:2017 - 31 Aug 2021 ;None
: :APP'Oimed :
e e OOV OO e e
‘Mrs H Spain  :Parent 16Jul2018  ‘15.Jul2022 "None
... . lgovermor
Mr M Culver fjparent 23Mar2015 15Jul2018  None
Rev J Hall ;Appamted '23Mar2015 15Jul2018. -None
; governor
Objects and Aims

The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust's Objects are:to advance for the-public benefit education in the United
Kingdom, in’ partlcular ‘but without prejudice to the -generality of ‘the foregoing by establishing,
maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing Academies which shall offer a-broad and balanced
currieulum. These will include: Church of. England school$ designated as such, which shall be
conducted in -accordance with the piinciples, practices ‘and. ténsts of the Church of England both
generally and in particular in: relation to arranging for religious education and daily"acts of worship, and
having regard to any advice issued by the:Diocesan Board of Education; and other Academies, whether
with 6r without-a designated religious:character; but in relation to The Pilgrim Muiti Academy Trust
to recognise and support their individual ethos whether or not designated Church of England.

Mission Statement:

To bring together the best people who are dedicated to enabling human flourishing within outstanding
educational environments.

Vision:

To be recognised as a first class educational Trust built-on ottstanding Christian foundations,
'Values:

Caring is our passion

Succeeding together

Driving excellence

Delivering our promises
Keeping it simply about children

-13-
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Alms:

* Toimprove outcomes:forallpupils.by promoting -outstanding-education across member.schools”
to-support and sustaln high standards;

o To support each school in its individual vision

¢+ Toshare.and implementbest: practice to face the-challenges-of the future.in a local context

e Tooffer support to-other: pnmary“schools facmg challenge, within the capacity of the'group

Objectives, Strategies and Activities.

The core purpose.of The Pilgrim MAT is to. promote outstanding education forall our- chnldren‘
in-an increasingly ‘changing ‘and challenging -educational landscape. It is essential that the
strategic:and operationalfunction‘of the‘centré adds: ‘¢apacity to theindividual schiools, through :

supporting-school lmprovement by providing open and transparerit evaluation and feedback
promofing openness.and information:sharing:across the:trust for the beneﬁt and support of all
premotmg pfofesswnal dlalogue and support between ali ‘members of The Pilgrim MAT
community
» promoting shared continuing professional development to address - new skills needed &s an
-Academy Trustiincluding governance:
o best value for money. through economy-of scale purchasmg ‘and:procurement of sérvices
e ensuring that statutory-and- legal dutnes are:metthrough:
o financial oversight
o auditing mcludlng commnssnonmg internal and  external audits and audit of regulatory’
systems.
leading ‘Headteacher perforiance-management
monitoring school performance and effectiveness-and intervening where needed
up to-date.and.fit for purpose. HR/émployment related policies
monitoring individual school's ‘health and: saféty and safeguarding policiées and:
procedures.

@000

Keeplng focus on-our:core purpose and-using the- strategies ‘above, during the' period from 1
September:: 2017 -31 ‘August: 2018 our: objectives were:.

To Maintain:high outcomes: for our puplis:so that thé Trust's school are a fifstchoice for parents.
by

» Maintaining the unique‘character and ethos of each school'so that puplils.develop within
' a nurturing environment

¢ Ensuring that outcomes of attainment remaining above National figures in all Key
Stages
e Ensuring progress lavels remain-above or: sngmficantly ‘above National figures

o Promoting:above 96% attendance se that: puplls arein schooi and-readyto learn.at the:
start of the school day
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Continue to develop new leadership and management so that planned changes in :structure
ensure leadership remains outstanding by

o Develop collaborative Headteacher support systems across the Trust

e The recruitment and retention of ‘talénted individuals -throughout the Trust, including
Governors'and Trustees
Strengthen and develop Governance-as the structure changes .
Restructuring the administration structure of the Trust and-schools fo ensure that it is effective
and efficient

e Providing opportunities for career progression within the Trust so that talented individuals are
retained

Raise the quality of teaching and leaming by

» Recruitment and retention of high quality téachers

» Rigorous and. robust quality assurance: of teaching through Joint lesson observations, book
looks and moderation by.senior leaders across:the Trust
Share best practice In teaching mathematics with partner schools.
ngh quality CPD to support teachers and teaching support 'staff to increase their skills and
raise expectations

¢ Review Admissions Policies to ensure: that the schools continue- to serve their local
communities

Establish management and financial systems and procédure across the Trust which mest.the
requirements.of thie law and the‘Academies Financial Handbook

¢ 'Reorganisation of existing financial systems and procedures to meet the demands of
-academisation
‘Provide training and support in-using the consolidated financial management system
Provide CPD for Local Governors and Diréctors on the requirements-for Academy Finance
Write.and adopt The Pilgrim MAT central policies: and procedural documents to meet:statutory
requirements, which-are understdod by all

All aspects of the Trust's activities during the. 2017-2018 year are linked to its charitable purposes
namely ,theAadvancement of educational establishments for the public benefit.

The Trust has seen pupils in its Academies making.good and sometimes outstanding progress during
the year..As a combined Trust-pupils have achieved 16% above theéir National peers.

Governance has been strengthened through quality succession p!anmng and focused training; most
governors: and trustees attended multiple training opportumhes in 2017—2018 to upskill them in
delivering their responsibilities and to help them understand their. role in delivering the scheme of
delegation.. A trust-wide governor conference. promoted - good communication links and. collaborative
opportunities across all levels of governance.

The quality of teaching has remained high, Senior Leaders have ¢arried. out triangulated, joint
observations and quality assurance across the 3 schools. The:schools have jointly written and delivered
programmes to lead the improvement of teaching and learning in mathematics across the Trust. This
has:included visits to our outstanding school, inset and modelled practice. The Pnlgnm School has also
developed; préséented and trained staff on the embeddmg of “The: Pilgrim Progress’;.a system for
‘assessment-to inform teachers, parents and pupils on their progress against the National Curriculum
for €ach individual year group. All schools have seen an impact from adopting this -approach to
-assessment.

-15-
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‘Atthe‘end of EYFS:2017/18, 83%6f pupis:
showed ' typtca!’ levels when they started

and: deadlines for statutory retums have been met There: Is an open and’ transparent shanng of both
financial information -and performance information -so. that- all lediders and' managers; know and
undérstand how the priorities for the: Trust are determiried, as Well ag knowing where we have
performed- well. A business. plan was implemented to move to & centralised finance modal’ for
September 2018,

All aspects: -of the. Trust's -activities are linked to its charitable purposes namely the advancement of
educational establishments for the: pub|ic ‘benefit.

Public.Benefit

The directors confirm that the:objectives:and: actlvmes of the Trist. provide identifiable benéfits, namely
educatxonal which are in: ;pursuance. of the:aims 'of the: Trust. This bénefit is avaitablé:to- youhg people
aged from-3'to 11, The.admission criteria of the academiies:aré rict unduly restrictive and are in keeping
with'the religious-aims of the Trust, Furthermore; the: directors.confirm that they have complied with

{their duty to have regard to:the guidance-on pubhc benefit as-published by the Charity:Commission..

Strategic report
Achievements.and Performance

The Trust's- main objective isthe advancement. of. education in the. United Kingdom for the public
behefit: consequently; the: -academic achievement.of its: learners are:its primary fotus: During the.

2017-2018 academic year, overall there was:an improvement in‘the-academic achievement of all
pupils in the Trust.

‘Early Years Foundation Stage

" All 3 schools have significant pmpomons of children ‘who enter the reception year below agde.
‘expected. development. The focus on rapldly ‘increasing childrén's acquisition of spoken and

receptive language- together with. strong: provisions.that providé a vast range-of sKill development.

for gross and fine'motor skills with :an exceptional Ferest School — held up as a model to others-at
The Pilgrim Schiool,

Pilgrim Schaol

At the-end of 2016/17, 77% gchieved a good level of. develepment from the.30% at ‘typical’ levels:
on-entry; therefore 47% of puplls made: accelerated progress.

hieved a;good level of development — 46:7% of this cohiort
ol. Therefore, 36,3% of puplls made accelerated progress:
to reach the ‘expected level of- development by the end of the year, Attainment is higher and-above’
National for-Early Years.

‘St Margaret’s.at Troy Town (SMATT)

Atthe'end of EYFS:2017/18, 67% of pupils achjeved.a .800d level of development ~ 17%.of this cohort:
showed ‘typlcai' levels:when they started- scﬁ, ol Th pupils made accelerated. progress.
to reach the expected: level of déveldpment by the year. The attainment at the end.of the.
year is on the low side of Natlonal aithough' conslde, d ‘broadly in-line’,
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St Mark’s

At the end of EYFS 2017/18, 65% of pupils achieved.a good level of development — 256% of this cohoit

showed ‘typical’ levels when they started schaol. Therefare, 40% of pupils made accelerated progress

to reach the-expected level of development by-the end of the year. The attainment at the end of the
year is on the low side of National although considered ‘broadly in line'.

Key Stage 1

Year 1 Phonics

Phonics is a strength at The Piigrim Schooland St Mark’s; SMATT

School School National ‘School 2017/18 | National
2016117 12018417 201 7118
Piligrim 87% 181% 87% 82.5%
SMATT N/A N/A 64% 82.5%
St Mark's N/A N/A 88% 82.5%
Year 2 Phonics
School School National School 2017/18 | National
201617 2016/17 _ 2017118
Pilgrim 97% 91% 97% - 92%.
SMATT N/A N/A | 100% 92%
St Mark’s . | NIA N/A 90% 92%

The schools carry out regular monitormg of phonics ‘and; as is Trust practice, through lesson
observations and moderation of writing to-assesgthe impact of phionics teaching. in.all 3 schools, pupils
achieve well in phonics by the end of Key Stage 1.

End of Key Stage 1 Results

Figures in'the table below show the percentage of pupils at The Pilgrim Schoo! meeting expected
or better standards and the percentage at greater depth.achievers:

Group KS1 - % National 2046 .-17 % The Pilgrim School 2016 -17
Expected+ Greater Expected Greater
Depth’ standard+ Depth
Al Pupils Reéading 78 .25 90 23
1 All Pupils Writing _ 68 16 87 18
| All Pupils Mathematics 75 21 80 23
Boys Reading 71 22 89 33
Boys Writing - 61 11 78 22
Boys Mathematics 74 ) 22 89 ) 44
Giris Reading 80 29 91 18
' Girls Writing 75 20 91 14
Girls Mathematics 76 119 91 14
Disadvantaged Reading 79 28 83 0
Disadvantaged Writing | 72 18 83 0
Disadvantaged.Mathematics | 79 23 83 0
_Other Pupils Reading 79 28 92 28
Other Pupils Writing _ 72 18 _ 188 20
Other Pupils Mathematics 79 23 92 28

(Cohort size's cause-the variance in percentages)
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For The: Pnlgnm School, during 2016-2017 and-2017-2018 aftainment for ‘Expected’ standards
femain above:Natiohal ‘whilst-those ; achlevmg ‘Greater Depth’ remain .broadly in: line with their
Natlonal peers. This is considered a. strong: posmon given their low’ startmg points.

Key»S.tage 12047 - 18 A‘ttalnmenti

Key Stage 1 is considered a: strength for-all"3 schools in 2017-18 with resuits being elther above
orwell: above 2016 17 'Nationalfigures (2017 - 18- figures not.released &t time of ‘reporting).

Groups Pilgrim School SMATT St Mark's .
Expectéd Greater Expected | Greater Expected | Greater
. standard+ . ‘Begth standard+ | Depth standard+ | Depth
| All.Pupils Reading |- 90 {27 183 35 182 18
'Allgqﬁils‘..w'ﬂﬁhg 87 127. 79 17 77 18
Al Pupils: | 87 27 83 24 82 18
Mathematics 1
Boys Readlng ‘87 27 79 21 78 22
Boys Writing 80 27 66 40 66 22
Boys:Mathematics | 93 27 5. 24 78 22
Girls:Reading_ 93 27 87 147 88 13
"Girls Writing 93 27 187_ 47 88 13
‘Girls Mathematics | 93 27 87 -20 88 13
Key. Stage 2

The. Pilgrim School progress for 2016 ~ 17received: a-lettet from the: Secretary of State- for
Education congratulating'them for’ progress: daita inthe top:2% of- schouls Nationally.

KS1 — KS2 Progress: for:All Pupils 2016-2017

"(Progress figures-for all pqpils‘ are-given below and-should be compared to a National value of

zero.)
School Reading ‘Writing Progress ' Mathematics
| Progtess: 2016117 Progress
20167117 ) ) 2016117
Piigrim School L y
+5.37 1+329 +4.58
Progress o )
confidence +3.11 to +7.64 +1.01: to +5.41 +2.54 t0 +6.63
interval e . ¥
Significance Well above. national | Abovenationalaverage | Well abové national
average : average
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KS1 ~ KS2 Progress for All Pupiis 2017-2018

School Reading Writing Progress | Mathematics.
Progress 2017118 Progress

. 2017118 2017118
Pllgrim-School +3.09 42.33 +2.32
Progress _ ] '
confidence interval | +1.0to0 +5.2 +0.2to +4.4 +0.4to +4.2
Significance Well above national | Above national | Above national average:

: average average
SMATT -2.01 -3.92 -4.09
Progress T
caonfidence interval | 4.3 to +0.3 ‘6.110-1.7 8.210-2.0
Significance Average ‘Well below national | Well below national
' average. -average

St Marks +1.56. +0.89 +1.32
‘Progress
confidence interval | -1.0to +4.2 -1.810 +3.2. -1.0 to +3.6
Significance Average Average Average

Progress remains well above National in reading and-above National in writing and mathemahcs
for The Pilgrim School - progress is. considered strong.

At StMark's C-of E anary School progress:scores have improved in all subjects since conversion;

all scores are positive against National and fall within the average range.

St Margaret’s at Troy Town (SMATT) has improved progress score in all subjects since joining the
Trust; reading is now considered -average. whilst wiitihng and mathematics remain well below

-average.
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Attainment-at the End of Key Stage 2

Durihg 2016- 17 The. Pilgrim'S¢haol performed strongly against: National for all. groups:. )
For disadvantaged pupils, numbers: were-very-small. Greater Depth-was.a strength at individual,
subject level with combinéd being.considered “broadly in. ling” with National.

Group KS2 % National 2016. -17 % The Pilgsim’ School.2016 A7
T " Expected standard+ | Greater - Expected’ Creater
Dgpth tandard+ Depth
All Pupils RW,M | 61 ‘ 73 ) 7
Combined
AllPupils Reading | 71 25 o7 45
A Pupils Writing | 76 18 190 31
Al Pupils | 75 23 90 48
Mathematics ;| -
Boys:Reading 68 121 100 50
Boys Writing 70 113 79 38
Boys Mathematics | 75 - 24 179 57
Girls'Reading - 75 28 g3 40
Girlsi Writing 83 23 100 27
Girls: Mathematics | 75 21 1100 .40
Disadvantaged 77 29 100 "33
| Reading _ '
| Disadvantaged 8t - 3 50 0
Writing _ _ ' .
Disadvantaged | 80 27 50, 33
Mathematics . . }
Othier Pupils | 77 29 g6 148
Readlng . ) )
Other Pupils: |84 21 ‘100 38
Writing _ , .
Other Pupils: | 80. 27 1100 52
Mathematics :

End of Key Stage 2 data for2017- 18

Attainment at'the end of’ key stage 2 has.improved:at all 3 schools from their 2016 17 results
(SMATT arid-ST Mark:s from théir: maintained.school data)

2017/18 Grammar-Punctuation and Speiling results at thie end of KS2

GPS | National National Pilgrim Pilgrim- | SMATT SMATT | St Marks St-Marks
2017- | Expected+ | G/ Depth | Expected+ | G/ Depth | Expectsd+ | G/ Depth | Expected+ | G/'Depth
18

Al 1 77% 34% 90% 63% 64% | 18% 90% 38%
pupils

The Pilgrim School and St Mark's: performed: strongly ‘dgainst: National whilst SMATT Is. below-National.
SMATT 11% progress on the previous 2 years as'a mainfained scheol.
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End of Key Stage 2 2017 — 18 Data for Individual groups

‘Expected’ attainment for.pupils at the end of the primary phase is in line with National figures at
SMATT and exceeding at both Pilgrim and St Mark's. Therefore, the Attainment of pupils at the
end of this phase of education is considered strong with percentages for combined subjects across
the Trust standing at 80% - 16% above that of National.

(National Data for Disadvantaged pupils is currently provisional)

Group KS2 % Natiohal % The Pilgrim | % SMATT % St Mark’s
i 2017-18 School 2017 18 2017 -18 2017 -18

Expecte | Great | Expected | Great | Expecte | Great | Expected | Greater

d ‘er standard | er d er standaid | Depth

staridar | Depth | + Depth | standar | Depth | +

d+ d+
All Pupils R:W.M Combined 64 10 980 7 68 7 81 10
All Pupils Reading 75 28 80 30 75 | 29 86 33
All Pupils Writing 78 20 93 20 75 7 91 19
All Pupils Mathematics 75 24 93 27 7 11 95 24
Boys Reading 71 24 82 27 d) 21 75 33
Boys Writing 72 15 91 9 71 7 83 17
Boys Mathematics- ‘75 25 91 127 71 17 92 25
Gids Reading 79 32 95, 32 179 36 100 33
Girls Writing 84. 25 85 28 79 7 100 22
Girls Mathematics 76 21 195 26 71 14 100 22
Disadvantaged Reading 80 32 ‘80 10 40 0 83 0

_Disadvantage Writing - 83 23 80 10 40 0 67 o

Disadvantaged Mathematics 80 28 90 20 40 0 83 0
Other Pupils Reading _ 80 33 95 40 81 31 87 47
Other Pupils' Writing 83 24 95 25 73 8 100 27
Other Pupils Mathematics 81 28 26 28 77 12 100 33

*Soime groups reflect very small numbers within different cohoit sizes and therefore distort

percentages

Attendance

Overall attendance at The Pilgrim Schoo! for 2016-17 was 97%. For2017- 18, The Pilgrim School
maintained high attendance. with-a second year of 87%; St Margaret's at Troy Town was 96.1%
and StMark's C of E Primary School, 86%, meaning that attendance.was consistently high acrass
the Trust compared to National.

All 3 schools -also have lower than National proportions: of persistent absentees despite the
reduction of the threshold. The work of the fulltime Pastoral Care Manager Home School Support
Worker and office-staff together with robust 'systems to improve attendancé should be.credited for
‘this success.
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Key Performance Indicators

The Trust undertakes monitoring of both a financial-and non-finanéial nature, as follows:

Financial:
.

‘Budget: income-and. expenditure to; actualtperformance budgets are. rewewed monthly in:
each school by the Finarice-Officer and
and at 3 drop in visits to -complete’ finance trails. Managemem accounts are reviewed 3
times during the year by the: Board finance committée who. reise questions and Local
Governing Body mesting. minutes-relating to finance: scrutiny. All _budgetary issues were
dealt with for the year: -

Budgetthree-year forecasting - this is undertaken on & rolling: annual basis and it was noted
that budgets in forthcoming years will be:under extréme pressure due to governmerit policy.
on grant. income‘as well as the:increase. in: pension contributions-and the minimum wage:
pay scales.

Staff pay-as a proportiori-of income - thig s reqularly | reviewed:and for: theyear represented.
76% of total income, excluding:conversion incofie:

Specnﬁc incomé and- expendrtune to: targets — is reviewed regularly and monitored by the:
Financial support from Schaols. Financial Services:who:prepare management accounts for-
the Local Governing Bodies and the “Trust Board.

The Trust. maintains a detailed Risi Register; whichvis-a live. documient. and is-reviewed at

least termly and.as necessary. by the CEO and Headteachers Actions are put in-place to’

mmgate both financial and reputaticnal risks:

Benchmarkihng against other ‘similar academies ~ Local Governing Bodies reviewed
benchmarking against DfE finance benchmarks and will develgp as a continuing. process.
as relevant data for.the:academies becomes available.

Non-Financial:

'S

The Pilgrim School is currently judged.as ‘Outstandmg by, bath: Ofsted. (2015) and SIAMs.
(2015).-St Margaret's:at Troy Town is currently judged as’ “Good' by Ofsted (2013):and &s:
‘Sahsfactory by SIAMs:(2017). st Mar‘ s:C of E Primary -School i§ currently judged:as.
‘Good’ by both Ofsted (2015):and SIANS: (2017,

‘Pupil numbers. - The Pilgrim School and St:l;/la'rgaret's at Troy Town are full on PAN at;

210 each; St Mark’s C of E Prirary-School has 132, pupils'8 below their PAN of 140; these

vacancies are in KS2; whiist Early Years and KS1 are:over PAN'by 2 puplls gaining places -

on appeal.

Curriculum- ~ is rich and varied with.a focus on creative. curriculum approach. Learning

outside with a particular focus on “forest- school is. a: strength The Pilgrim School.-has
developed its:own assessmeént procedures for  monitoring’ progress and coverage against
the National Curriculum known as. ‘The Pllgnm ngress which is being implemerited
across all 3 schools -~ the impact can be. seen in improvmg aﬁainmem results in-ail 3
schools.

End of EYFS and' key stage results are reviewed @gainst Local-and National ‘statistics:
published by the’ Departient. for Education together with-data’ provxded through ASP.
Fupil Premium and value for. money' is reviewed agamst Local and’ National s’latlstics
published by:the Department. for Education together with. data provided through ASP,
Achievement of the pupil prefnium-cohorts are shown in'the: performance and achievement
section.

.For 2017- 18 pupil premium pupils overall.achieved in excess or ‘broadly i in line’ with their

National peers (where numbers within the cohort:do not:distort percentages).
Disadvantaged. Piipils that have no secondary. neéd outperform their peers demonstrating.

the impact of Pupil Premium spending in each school.

adteacher; by governors 3 fimes in meetmgsf
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e Sparts Premium and value for money - is reviewed regularly by the Local Governing
Bodies and annually by the Board. Pupils have access to a wide range of sports both
through thé cuiriculum during the school day and after school and lunchtime: clubs. Our
schools are competitive at inter-school toumaments

« Facilities - the condition of premises are monitored with and: through the Local Governing
Bodies and any necessary bids for fundmg will be- made as appropriate.

¢ Health and safety is reviewed ‘regularly by the Local Governing Bodies and external
reviews-are commissioned for all Trust schools.

e Energy consumption and efﬁclency this. is monitored by reference to the. available
commercial rates. The Schoo! boilers are all 6ver 9 years old and beginning to require
greater maintenance; evidence being. collected — these will be monitored closely and a bid
for CIF funding made when nécessary.

« Staff Performance - this Is monitored through ‘annual staff appralsal based on a single
central policy, the Trust ensures that staff performance is monitored and rewarded
consistently and effectively. Challenge for underperfoimance is robustand charge is linked
Into Appraisal. The Headteachers-and CEO performance management’ is carred out by
the Trust Board and or an appointed external advisor, again this ensures rigour for the
process..

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries,; the board of Trustees has & reasonable expectation that The Pilgrim
Multi Academy Trust'has adequate resources’ to.continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. ‘For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concem basis .in preparing the financial
statements. Further'details regarding the adoption of the going concem basis can be found in the
Statement-of Accounting Policies.

“The Trust's: ‘primary source of fundmg i$ pursuanttothe:master: fundlng ‘agréement: and the-academies’
-supplemental funding-agreements. in-additior

ition, the: academies receive funds through breakfastand after
school's. clubs, funds -raised by pareits and donatlons The-budgets for the Academies and the Trust:
are approved by the Trustees. Thé budgets reflect the priorities of the. Academies and the Trust. The
financial position of the Academies and Trust are monitored. by the Boaid Finance Committee as well

as the Local Govemning Bodies. The financlal policies and procedures which have been approved by

the Board of Trustees comply. with the Academiles Financial- Handbook and are implemented by the
Trust and the: Academles

When.the accounts are consolidated, there is an overall deficit of £364k This is following a full actuarial
valuation of pension deficit figure for the Local Government Penslon Scheme of £1,137k. The premises

‘where the Academies are located, plus the land at SMATT are owned (but not malnuained) by the

Rochester Diocese cannot be used to offset deficit. This position may worsen should pension
contributions increase further.
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Financial review,

We receive our income from a:number of different sources. The majority of our-income comes from
central government via the Educatxon and-Skills: ng Agency who pmvlde us with-grant, based
largely.on our student pumbers o cover our- staffi other general running_ costs (General Annual
Grant.- GAG): Thé ESFA.may:provide ‘us with additional. grants which aré -earmarked, for specific’
purposes: (such -as Pupil. Prermum which must bi& used:to raiseithe affainment of dnsadvantaged pupils).
These appear inthe accounts as. DFE/ESFA grants. Where we receive: granitor.other funding from the
Local Authority: (stich as where we undertake responsibilities on; Sherr behalf in respect.of our- students)
thls appears in the. accounts a Other govemment Such income is: collectively referred to as
’ ‘ nparents for example:as.contributions o trip.or other
¢ for interest on our'account balances. or:from
Su h other income may be xestricted or'

We:hold-funds in two. broad categories, funds which are available for spending and other funds which:
afe not'availabie for spending.

Spendable funds are in-turn sub-categonsed Jbetween those. which are avallable for spendmg -at the.

discretion of trustees (* Unrestricted Funds”) ‘and those: Wwhich are subject to condition or restriction;
(“Restricled -Funds” ).

Fuynds not available- for spending include the book:value of fixed assets such as land, buildings. and
equipment. These have a value and-are therefore includs -assets in the accounts but: Clearly, we
cannct:spend this value. In common with all academias’ cal Authorities; ‘our share.of the Local
Govarnment Penston Scheme deficit. must also be feflecter ur. acgounts-and as this is. not @
conventional’ habmty it'dées not need-to be deducted fro gendable funds. We meet oirr obligations:
in respect of the LGPS by paymg over pension coritiibutions due as. calculated’ by the scheme's:
actuaries. The following’ balances:held were-heid at 31. August

Fund Category 2018 2017
£000

GAG Restricted General Funds: (29) 12
Other DIE/ESFA Grants Restricted General Funds 129 )
Sub-total General-Restricted Finds: 100 62

Unispent-Capital Grants Restricted Fixed-Asset Fund 9 0
Other Income Unrestricted Gefieral Fund 86 o
Sub-total -Spendable Funds 187 82

Net Book Value of Fixed Assets Restricted Fixed Asset Fiind ~ 586 268
Share.of LGPS Deficit Restricted Pension Reserve (1.1437) (744)
Total All Funds (364) -{414)

During the:year under review and after transfers, there was-a:surplus. of £38k on general restrictedifunds, a
surplus.of £88k.on unrestricted funds and after LGPS valuation adjustments; depreciation and capital income.
and expendxtura an-overall: surplusldeﬂcﬂ of £50k.
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Reserves policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Trust annually This review encompasses the nature of
income and. expenditure. streams, the rieed to. match income with commitments and the nature of
reserves. The Trustees determine the appropriate level of reserves on an annual basis, The reason for
this is to provnde sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and
to provide-a cushion to deal with uinexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance. The Trust's
leval of free reserves (total funds less thie amount held in fixed assets and restricted funds) at the year-
end 31 August 20181s £15,000 and is retained to enable the. Trust to pursue projects at the Trustees'
discretion. The Trustees confirm that they consider the level of reserves to be adequate-bearing in mind
this is the first year of having more than one academy.

Investnient policy

The Trust shall not undertake any form of investment in stocks, shares, bonds or any other similar
investment vehicle or in property or buildings other than those related to the establishment,
maintenance, carrying on, managing and developing of educational establishments. The suitability of
the banking arrangements is reviewed every academic year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Trust's principal risk and uncertainty concerns the provision of funding from central Government
which is the major source of income for the academies and hence funding for the Trust. The current
economic climate will see a reduction funding, which may resuit in the Trust having a deficit budget in
the future. Although the Trust and the Academy have taken steps to make savings, these alone wili not
compensate for a reduction in central funding. in addition, further economies within the Academy might
impact on educational standards. This together with the recent increase in the minimum wage and
pension contribution changes may further reduce flexibility to maintain current staffing levels.

The succession planning for the Trust in relation to key Trustees.and.senior leaders, who to date, have
played a pivotal role in the development of thé Trust. All posts are currently filled but monitoring and
preparation for the future continues to be a focus,

The Trust and its Academies also acknowledge the continued importance of up-to-date, suitable and
secure IT systems both central and at the Academies and the:potential issues that can be experienced
by staff and students as a result of-any failures.

The Trust has had Its 5-year growth plan agreed by the Regional Schools Commissioner. Currently
there is capacity in.the existing. members to support this expansion, which is planned to be measured
and so sustainable. However, expansion also exposes the Trust and its academies to potentially risky
alliances both financial and educational. The Trust conducts thorough due diligence checks when a
school applies to join us, to mitigate risk.

Recruitment and retention of a high quality teaching staff is a concern;. the school was fully staffed
during the 2017-2018 academic year, but the Trust is aware that it is: becoming increasingly difficult to
recruit to.teacher vacancies. The Trust is mitigating risk by developing career pathways within the Trust
so that we are employers of choice. For example, through restructuring and a future possible sharing
of roles across the Trust's academies. in addition, the Trust works closely with teacher training
organisations such as the University of Greenwich, to attract high calibre trainee teachers into post.

The Trust also.acknowledges that negative public relations with stakeholders and the wider community
as a result of a poor Ofsted or SIAMS inspection or safeguarding issues may damage the reputation of
the Trust and affect pupil numbers. At the current time, all academies are rated either ‘Good’ or
‘Outstanding’ by Ofsted and are considered full in terms of PAN.
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The Trust maintains a live risk register which is reviewed regulariy to-assess changes and emerging,
risks. This register is available for review at Local Governing: Body and Board mestings. The Trustees:
are responsrble for identifying risks faced by the Trust, establishing procedures-to mitigate these: risks,
and -ensuring that employees are aware of these. procedures and of the implications of failing to
implement them. The Trustees have.delegated the more détailed scrutiny of the risks faced by the Trust
to the CEO who also reviews the mitigation put in place 6 combat the risk. The CEO advises the
Trustees on the: significant risks faced by the Trust and its academies. The Trustees confirm that the
maijor risks, to which the Trust is exposed, as identified in the risk register, have been reviewed and
systems and procedures-are in place to manage these potentla) risks. Furthermore, the Trustees are
satisfied that each academy has undertaken a detailed review of those risks specific to the Academy
and procedures have been put in place to-manage those risks. The Trustees are satisfied that these.
procedures are consistent with the guidelines: issued by the Charities Commission.

The Trustees acknowledge that they have overallresponsibility for ensuring thatthe Trust' has effective
and: appropriate systems of control, both financial and- rion-finangcial.

‘Our fundraising practices

The individual academies within the trust organise fundraising events and appeals and co-ordinate the
aclivities of our supporters both in the acddemies and.in‘the wider community, The trust doas fiot.use or
- allow the use of prdfessional fundraisers ot mvolve commereral participators. There have been no complaints
about -funidraising activity this year. The trust ensures that its academies comply with the Fundralsmg
Regulator's Code of Fundraising Practice..

All fundraising is-undertaken by the academies within the trust in a-manner that seeks to ensure that it is;not
unreasonably intrusive or persistent, Contact is made through email, app,. .academy newsieiters, lefters
home, our websites.and:via students. The trust.did not hold maliling lists for the purpose of fundraising during
the period being. reported.

Plans for Future Periods

The Trust's key objective-is the advaricement of education:in the United Kingdom for the public benefit,
The Trust has developed a strategic plan to- expand the Trust-and intend to make ‘best endeavours’ to
attract. another academy fo join the Trust This has been approved by the Regional Schools:
Commissioner and in the 2018-2019 year we:will make best-endeavours to welcome ane more schobdl
Into the Trust.

The. Trust's strategic objectives-support this key purpose:by-aiming to:

+ Build a2 strong community of schoals with a shared purpose.and for faith schools a
Christian ethos.:

+ Achieve the highest standards of leaming and achievement for all children and

aduits which-allows:human flouishing.

Achieve otitstanding teaching-and learmng

Develop an engaging:and exciting curricuilurn for.the 21% Century

Build a reputation for excellence i the cpmmunlty

Ensure that évery child leaving our Academies is:well equipped forthe

‘next stage of their education,

* Use innovative approaches to joint procurement to achieve Trust efficiencies and
value for money.

+ Nurture and develop School leadership including governance across
the Trust empowering leaders to work beyond good and at an
outstanding level.

o @ o o
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During 2016-2017 the Trust was established and will be built around its outstanding lead school; The
Pilgrim School. Due diligence and decisions were made regarding two Church of England primary
schools joining the Trust in 2017-18. The Trust also prepared and presented a successful Free School
bid for a two-form-entry Church of England primary school as part of the Rochester Riverside housing
development. The school is due to open in 2021. 2017-18 will see the move towards a shared ethos
and practice between schools to strengthen the outcomes of all its pupils and schools. Support will be
prioritised and organised in order to have the maximum impact. This will be evaluated and reported to
LGBs and Trustees by the CEO 3 times per year.

Employees and disabled persons

The Trust has a policy to eliminate unlawful discrimination and harassment on the grounds of disability
and to promote equal opportunities and a positive attitude towards disabled employees.

The Trust has management systems in place to provide information to and to consult staff on matters
affecting them.

Political donations

No political donations were made by the Trust during the academic year 2017-2018.

Provision of information to auditor

In so far as the Trustees are aware:
¢ theis no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and
e the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

This report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company’s directors, on 18 December 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

o wUkeo

M Wilkes
Chair of Board of Trustees for The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust
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Scope of responsibility

As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Pilgrim Multi Academy
Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a
system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO, as Accounting Officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They
are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in
internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the trustees' Report and
in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 4 times during
the period. The Board of Trustees also fulfils the role of Finance and Audit Committee.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Y = Attended, N = Apologies Accepted, NA = Apologies not Accepted, NS = No Apologies sent

gl B R

o o l|lo| =

Z(=l25
Trustee S22 K
Rev'd Anne Bennett Trustee | Y [ Y INI N
Dr Kate Bradley Trustee [ Y [ Y [Y] Y
Janette Perry Other Y|YIY]Y
Mr Michael Smith Trustee | Y | Y [N| N
Mrs Jan Taylor Ceo Y|IY|Y|Y
Harriet Thorneloe Trustee | Y ] Y |Y]Y
Mr Mark Wilkes Trustee | Y | Y Y} Y
Mrs Brenda Wood Trustee ([ Y [ Y |Y]| Y

The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust's Board of Trustees has developed during this period; in both
experience and skills with the recruitment of a trustee who brings legal expertise to the Board. It has
also been successful in recruiting a financial director who will join the Board for September 2018. This
appointment will mean the Trust Board is full in terms of capacity and skills.
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Governance reviews

During this year the Board has reviewed the strategic direction of the Trust and checked that
management systems and key policies are in place to so that the Trust meets the requirements of the
law and the Education Funding Agency’s Financial Handbook. The Board has monitored the work of
the Local Govermning Bodies of its 3 academies to ensure that they are effective and follow the policies
and procedures of the Trust. It hias worked effectively to promote good communication between Local
Govemmg Bodies to the Board ‘and vice versa. The Board-has set up an-annual ‘Govemor Conference'
which gives. all levels of governance an opportunity to-network and. establish collaborations. It prov!ded
the opportunity to share the Boards Christian vision which forms the basis for school vision
development.

The Board asks challenging questions which holds the Chief Executive Officer to account for the
performance of the Trust. In addition to ¢ontinually refiecting on, and reviewing effectiveness of
-govemance it has reflected on the capacity. and support for the CEO ‘and has recruited a School
Business to start in September 2018 which will allow the CEO to focus more directly on school
improvement.

Review of Valde for Money

As Accounting Officer, the CEO, has rasponsibility for ensuring that the Academy' Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to
the educational and wider socletal outcomes achieved in return forthe taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good: value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accouriting Officer for the
Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

o Pupil attainment at the end of Key Stage 2 has increased-in all' 3 academies from their 2016
-17 results;
The Trust successfully grew to 3. academies during this year.

» Leadership collaboration has provided. strong mentorship and professional development. for
all Headteachers.

« Cross-academy teacher collaboration has helped clarify expectations resulting in ‘accurate
assessments and improved standards at Key Stage 1 and 2.

¢ As a Trust the financial challenges of academisation have-been overcome.

s The Trust has been successful in its financial ventures which has allowed the recruitment of
? c;ratggl b;Siness manager and teaching staff to allow an outreach approach to interventions
or -19.
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The purpose of the system of internal coritiol

The system of internal controlis designed:to.manage; risk-to a reasonable level rather thanto eliminate
all risk of failure to.achieve palicies, alms and objectives; It can therefore-only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The'system of Internal cantral is based on an.on-going process
designed to ldenhfy and prioritise the risks' to the-achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and
cbjectives, to evaluate the likelihood: of those: risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The: system of internal control
has beén ifi placein The Pilgrim Multi. Academy Trustfor the year ended 31 August 2018 and up to the
date of approval 6f the annual report-and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the. Academy Trust is exposed together with:

the operating, financial: and compliancé controls that have been impiémented to mitigate those risks..
The.Board of Trustées is of the view.that there'is a-formal ongoing process. for identifying, evaluating:

and managing the. Academy Trust's slgmf icant risks that has been in place for the year ended 31 August

2018 and up to the date of approval 6f the-arihual report and -accounts. This process Is regularly-

reviewed by the Board of Directors..
The risk and contro) framework:

The Academy. Trusts system of internal finaricial control is tiased ofi. a framework of regular

‘management information -and administrative procedures including ‘the segregation of duties and ‘a

system of delégation and accountability. in-particular, itincludes:

» Comprehensive budgetnng and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

e Regular reviews by the finance and premlses committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts-and.of major purchase plans; “capital works and expendrturef

programmes;

Setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

Clearty defined purchasing (asset purchase;or-capital inveéstient) guidelines;
.Delegation of authority and:segregation.of duties;

ldentification and management of risks.

Trustees have considered the need for a-specific internal audit function and undertook an internal review
of all 3 academies ~ this was carried out by a finance govemor sitting at LGB level.

The reviewers' role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range:of checks on the
academy trust’s financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

+ Testing-of payroll systems
s Testing of purchase systems
» Testing of control account/bank reconciliations

On a planned and diarised. basis, the reviewer reports. at local governing body level, and provides a.

written report for the Trust Board arid auditors 'on the operation of the systems of control and on the

discharge of the governing body's financial responsibilities.

Trustees are satisfied that the role has been delivered effectively.
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Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

The work of the internal review procedures,

The work of the external auditor;

The financial management and governance self-assessment process;

The work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the system
of internal control by auditors and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement
of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 18 December 2018 and signed on its
behalf by:

—
U0 l%\o/

M Wilkes J Taylor
Chair of Trustees AccountingOfficer
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As accounting officer of The Pilgrim Muiti Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy
Trust Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding agreement
in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have
had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2017.

I confirm that | and the Academy Trust's Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use
of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2017.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees
and ESFA.

‘3@\ S

J Taylor
Accounting Officer

18 December 2018
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The trustees (who are also the directors of The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the Financial Statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts
Direction issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under company law the
Trustees must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, mcludmg
its income and expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these Financial Statements, the Trustees are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2017 to 2018; '

L make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures .

disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements; and
. prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also.responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financia!l information included
on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of Financial Statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 18 December 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

M JUken

M Wilkes
Chair of Trustees
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Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August 2018
which comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and the notes to
the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the Financial Statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2018 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017
to 2018.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report
to you where:

- the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the Financial Statements is not
appropriate; or

- the Trustees have not disclosed in the Financial Statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the Academy Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the Financial Statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the Financial Statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the Financial
Statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report,
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the Financial Statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year
for which the Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with the Financial Statements; and

- the Trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report, including the incorporated strategic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires

us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees are responsible for the
preparation of the Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements -

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’'s website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

David John Walsh FCCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Baxter & Co

Statutory Auditor

Chartered Certified Accountants

Lynwood House

Crofton Road

Orpington

Kent -

BR6 8QE

Dated: 18 December 2018

-36-



THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION &
SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 16 November 2016 and further to the requirements of
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust during the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

This report is made solely to The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust
and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust
and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Pilgrim Multi Academy Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 29 November 2016 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2017, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied
for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018. We report to you whether anything has come to
our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

Review of payments to staff;

Review of payments to suppliers and other third parties;

Review of grant and other income streams;

Review of some key financial control procedures;

Discussions with finance staff,

Consideration of the record maintained by the Accounting Officer of the oversight they have exercised,

Consideration of the programme of risk review and checking of financial controls implemented by the trust
in order to comply with its obligations under 2.4.9 of the Academies Financial Handbook 2017, issued by
the ESFA.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Baxter & Co

Independent Reporting Accountants
Chartered Certified Accountants
Lynwood House

Crofton Road

Orpington

Kent

BR6 8QE

Dated: 18 December 2018
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THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Unrestricted Restricted funds:
Funds ‘General Fixed asset
Notes £'000 £000 £'000
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 1 5 20
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 121 2,659 -
Total ‘ 132 2,664 20
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations 7 118 2,802 147
Charitable expenditure - transfer from
local authority on conversion 22 (70) 619 (441)
Total 5 48 3,421 (294)
Net income/(expenditure) . - 86 (757) 314
Transfersbetweenfunds . . .. ., 1§ - (5) 5
" Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarlal gains/(losses) on defined
benefit pension schemes =~ * 17 - 407 -
Net movement in funds ' 86 (355) 319
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward - (682) 268
Total funds carried forward .o 86 (1,037) 587

Total
2018
£'000

2,780

2,818

3,085

108

3,173

(357)

407

50

(414)

(364)

Total
2017
£'000

873

882

985
232

1,217

(335)

(79)

(414)

(414)
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THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED.31 AUGUST 2018

SUPPLEMENTARY NOTE:
COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

" Unrestricted Restricted funds:
Funds General Fixed asset
Notes £000 £'000. £'000
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 2 - 7
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 35 838 .
Total 37 838 7
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations _ 7 91 830 84
Charitable expenditure - fransfer from locai
authority on conversion 22 (54) 611 (325)
Total 5 37 1,441 (261)
Net income/(expenditure) - (603) ‘ 268
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit-perisicn
schemes 17 - 79) -
Net movement in funds (682) 268
Reconcillation of funds
Total funds brought ferward - - -
Total funds carried forward - (682) 268

Total
2017

£'000.

873

882

985
232

1217

(339)

(79)

414)

(414)




THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2018
2018 2017

Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 1 586 268
Current assets
Debtors 12 56 15
Cash at bank and in hand 218 112

274 127

Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 13 (87) (65)
Net current assets 187 62
Net assets excluding pension liability 773 330
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 17 (1,137) (744)
Total net assets (364) (414)
Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funds 15
- Fixed asset funds 587 268
- Restricted income funds 100 62
- Pension reserve (1,137) (744)
Total restricted funds (450) (414)
Unrestricted income funds 15 86 -
Total funds (364) (414)

The Financial Statements on pages 39 to 65 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on 18

December 2018 and are sianed on their behalf by:

M Wilkes
Chair of Trustees

Company Number 10382748
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THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

2018

Notes £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 18
Cash funds transferred on conversion
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital grants from DfE Group 20
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (21)

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

£'000

37
70

107

£'000

2017

£'000

51

54

105

112

112
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THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.2

13

14

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except-where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is-set out below.

Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been

.prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicabla

in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their Financial Statements In accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS
102)), the Academies Accounts Direction. 2017 to 2018 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006.

The P«lgnm Multi Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the abllity of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the Financial Statements and have concluded that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's-ability to continue as a going concern. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting In preparing the Financial Statements.

Coriversion to an academy trust

The conversion from a state maintained school to'an academy trust involved the transfer of identifiable assets
and liabilities and the operation of the school for £qil consideration. The substance of the transfer is that of a
gift and it.-has been accounted for on that basis as set out below.

The assets and. liabilities transferred from St Margaret's-at Troy Town C of E Primary School.and St Mark’s of
E Primary School to the academy trust have been valued at their falf value. The fair value has been derived
based on that of equivalent items. The amounts have been recogniséd under the appropriate balance shest
categories, with a corresponding amount recognised in Charitable activities — transfer from local authority on

-conversion in the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general

funds and restricted fixed asset funds. Further detalls of the transaction are set out in note 22.

Incore

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitiement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants .

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
recelved for speclﬂc purposes but not expended during the pericd is shown in the relevant funds on the balance
sheet. Where income is received In advance of meeting any performance-related conditions-there is not
unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred
income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received,
the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recbgnised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any-abatement in respect of the period is deducted from .income and recognised as a liability.




THE PILGRIM MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1 Accounting policies

Capital grants are recognised.in full when there Is an unconditional entittement to the grant. Unspent amatints
of capital-grants are: reflected in the. balarice sheet in the: restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when thére is entitiement and are not.deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Sggqgorshlg income

Sponsorshlp income-provided to the Academy Trust which- amounts to a donationis recognised in the statement
of financial activities.in the peried. in which it is receivable- (where there-are no performance:rélated conditions),
whare the:recelpt is probable and it ¢an be measured:refiably.

Danations

‘Donations are recognised on a‘receivable basis {where there are rio. performance-related conditions) where
thé receipt is.probable and the amount can be-reliably measured.

er incol
Other income, including. the-hire of facilities, is recognised.in the period it is receivable and to the- eitent the.
Acadeimy Trust has provided the goods of services:

Do oads, faciliti d.services

Goods dohated- far resale are included at fair value, bemg the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practlcal to.assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in-stock and ‘income from other
trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stockis charged against 'Incoms from other trading activities' and-
the proceeds are:recognised as “Income from other tradlng activities'. Where it.is impractical to fair value then
items due to the volume: of low value.items they are not recognised in the financial statements uptii they are:
sold. This Income Is recognised within ‘lncome from.other trading activities'.

ad fixe: 1=
Donated fixed assets are. measured at fait value uriless itis impractical to-measure this reliably, in which case
the cost of the'item to the donor is-used, The gain s recogmsed as income-from-donation’s: and a: correspondlng

.amount is included in the appropriate fixed &sset category and depreciated over the uséttil’ economic life in
accordance with the Académy Trust's: accounting policies.

1.5 Expenditure 4
Exbenditure is recognised orice there is a legal or.constructive. obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third

party, it is probable-that a transfer of economic  benefits will be.required in settlement, and the-amount of the.
obligation-¢an be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up. of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, mcludlng support ¢osts involved in.undertakirig each acﬁvrty Direct costs-attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Sharéd costs which contribute to more than one: actlvrty and support
costs which are not attributable to a single: activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges.are aIlocated on the portion of the asset's-use.

All resources expended are-inclusive-of irrecoverable VAT.

Th|s mcludes all expendnture neurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs. of &ill fundraising activities events-and non-¢haritable trading.
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16

Accounting policies

Charitable activities
These are costs. incurred on the Academy Trust's educatlona| operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Govemance costs
These include the costs attributable to the Academy Trust's compliance with constitutional and statutory
requiremsnts, including audit, strategic management, Trustees' meetings and reimbursed expenses.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Assets costing £1,000 or are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation

‘and any provislon for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have bean acquired with the aid-of specific grants, either from the governmant or
from the private sector, they are. included in the Balance Sheet at cost.and depreciated -over their expected
useful.economic life. Where there are specific: cpndlticns attached to the funding that require the continued use
of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities and carried forward In the Balance Sheet. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired / funded
by other income, the fixed asset fund is also credited. Depreciation on the.rélevant assets is charged directly
to the restricted fixed asset fund in the ‘Statement of Financial Activities:

Depreclaﬁon is prS{itded dn all tanglble fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the
cost of each asset ona stralght-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

o

Leasehold land and' bulldmgs 0.8% Straight Line
Computer equipment : 33% Straight Line
Fixtures, ﬁtﬂngs & equipment 20% Straight Line

Motor vehicles 10% Straight Line

Fixed Asset Transfer from Predecessor Schoo!

The main land and buildings used by the Academy Trust, being the school sites at The Pllgnm School, St
Mark's C of E Primary School and St Margaret's at Troytown C of E Primary School. are owned by the
incorporated Rochester Diccesan Board of Education. The Academy Trust occupies these rent free under a
licence to occupy contained in a supplemental agresment with The Secretary of State. The Trustees of the
Academy Trust have considered carefully the requirements of and guidance notes within the Academies
Accounts Direction issued by the ESFA. They have concluded that, taking into account the rights and
obligations placed upon the Academy Trust by the licence to occupy, the substance of the arrangement is that

this right to occupy does not confer benefits that constitute a fixed asset, Accordingly they have concluded that

the Academy Tmst's right to occupy its buildings should not be. recognised as a fixed asset on its balance
sheet.

Playing fields are occupied on-a leasehold basis under 125 year leases with Medway Council and Kent County
Council. The fand values have been estimated by the trustees, taking into account the legal restrictions as to
usage.

A review for mpanrment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes In circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed. ‘asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impaimment losses aré recognised in the

'Statement of Ftnanaal Actwlhes
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1.8

1.9

1.10

111

Accounting policies

Liabilities

Liabilities:are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance shéet date as.a result of a past event, itis
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required-in settiefent, and the aniount of the settlement’
can be estimated reliably: Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the'Academy Trust antlclpates it will pay
to settle the debt orthe amountit has received as advanced payments for the goods of seivices it must provlde

Leased assets

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged against income on:a strmght line basis over the period-of
the lease.

Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments -as- defined in FRS: 102. The financial assets.and.
financial fiabilities of the Academy Trust and" their measurement basis are-as-follows.

Einanc @! assefs

Trade and otherdebtors are basic firiancial instrumeits: and are: debt instruments.measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash-at bank is classified as a bas’lc.ﬂnanci,al instrument and is measured at-face-vailue.

Einancial liabilities ‘

Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost:
Taxation and soclal security are notincluded in the financial instniments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is-not deemed to be:a financial liability; as the cash settiement has already taken-place and
theré:is an obllgatuon to dehver services rather than cash or another financiai instrument,

“Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6-of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets:the definitiori of a charitable. company. for UK. corporatlon tax purposes.. Accordingly, the
Academy Trust is potentially -exemipt ‘from “taxation in respect of income :or capital gains recelved: within
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the. Corporation Tax Act-2010 or ‘Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1982, to the extent that. such income or gains. -are ‘applied-exclusively to charitable
purposes.

Pensions benefits

Retiremerit benefits to employees of the Academy Trust-are provided by the Teachers! Pension Scheme (TPSY)
and'the.Local Govemmient Pension Schemme (LGPS"). These are-defined benefit schemes.and thie assets are
held separately from those of the Academy’ Trust.

The TPS is an unfunded-scheme-and contributions are calculated s6 as to spread the cost of pensions .over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in- such-a way that the pension’cost is-a substantially level

_percentage of current and future. pensionable payroll. The contributions: aré determined by the Government

Actuary on the basis of quadrenmal valuations using a prospective unit crédit method. The TPS is. an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underying assets to assign between :employers: Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution'scheme for. -atcounting:purposes and the contributions are:recagnised in the
period fo which they relate..
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1.12

Accounting policles

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets-are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis: using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent.
to the cutrent rate of return on a high quality-corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The
amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions,
benefit changes, settlements and curtaliments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest
on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statemant of financial activities.and comprises
the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the fair value of the-scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the
benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the. scheme assets and the-actual retumn on
the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustess.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds compnse all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and inc!ude grants from the Department for Education Group.

P

Critical accounﬁng est!mates and-areas of judgement

Accounting esttmates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and

-other factors, including expectations ‘of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

sal accounting estl .and assumptions
The Academy Trust makes estimatés and assumptions conceming the future. The resuiting accounting
‘estimates and assumpttons will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing.a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabllities wtthin the next ﬁnanctal year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Govemment Pension-Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on:an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the niet cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 17, will impact the carrying-amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been
used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liabliity at 31 August 2018. Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying-amount of the
pension liability.

The fair value of inherited leasehotd land and the right to occupy the rhain site of The Pilgrim School have been
estimated by the trustees on ‘the basis: described more fully in the accounting policies and in note 10 to the
financlal statements

Critical areas of j men

In preparing these Financial Statements the Trustees have not needed to exercise any subjective judgements
that would be critical to the Academy Trust's Financial Statements.
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3

Dotiatlons and capital grants
Unrestricted.  Restricted
funds funds
£'000 £'000
Capltal grants - 20
Other donations 11 5
11 25
Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations
Unrestricted  Restricted
funds funds.
£'000 £'000
DfE / ESFA grants
General annual grant (GAG) ’ - 2,127
Other DfE group grants - 389
- 2,516
Other government grants :
Local authority grants - 143
Other funding
Other incoming resources 121 .
Totai funding 121 2,659
‘Expenditure.
Non Pay Expenditure
Staffcosts:  Prémises Other:
£'000 £000 £000
Academy's educational operations:
- Direct costs 1,878 118 137
- Aliocated support costs 395 191 348
2273 307 485

Total
2018
£'000

20
16

s |

Total
2018
£'000

2,127
389
2,518

143

121

2,780

Total
2018

£000

Total
2017
£'000

Total
2017
£000

670
122

792

46

35

873

Total
2017
£'000

677
308

985
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§  Expenditure

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: 2018 2017

£'000 £'000
Fees payable to auditor for:
- Audit 8 4
- Other services T 10 4
Operating lease réntals ' 3 2
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 144 57
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 33 14

Included within.expenditure are the following transactions:
2018
£

Gifts made by the Academy Trust - total 27

Clarification note : While most of the disclosures in these accourits are rounded to £'000, the disclosure of gifts
above is not.’ The value of gifts during the year was £27 (and n6t £27k).

6§  Central services ™

The Academy prst has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:
e CEO - |
s School Business Manager
¢ Auditand accountancy fees

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:

‘o flat naraantana nf incamea

The amounts charged-duﬁn‘g'the year were as follows: 2018 2017

. o £'000 £'000

St Margaret's at Troy Town C of E Primary School 54 -
St Mark's C of E Primary School 22
The Piigrim Sch'oql . 44

120 -
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7

Charitable activities
Unrestricted  Restricted.

funds

£'000
Direct costs
Educational operations 103
Support costs
Educatiohal operations 13

148

Analysis of costs

Direct.costs

Teaching and educational support.staff costs
Staff development

Depreciation

Technology costs

Educational supplies and services
Educational consultancy

Support.costs

Support staff costs

Defined benefit pension:schiems - staff costs (FRS102:adjustment)
Depreciation o

Maintenance of premises and equipment

Cleaning ‘

Energy costs

_ Rent, rates and other occupancy costs

Insurance

Security-and transport

Catefing

Defined benefit pension scheme - finance costs (FRS102 adjustment)
Other-support costs

Govemance costs

fu'nds_'
£000

2,028

Total
2018
£'000
2,131

934

3,085

2018
£'000

1,878
13
116
21
103

2,131

247
148
28
39

37
39
11

66

33
103
145

‘834,

Total
2017
£000
877
308

985

2017

£000

596

677

110
40
11
13

+
20

26
14
13
49

308
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8 Staff
Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were:
‘ 2018
£000
Wages and salaries 1,657
Social security costs 139
Pension costs 284
Defined benefit pension scheme - staff costs (FRS102 adjustment) 148
‘Staff costs 2,228
Agency staff costs - 45
Total staff expenditure 2,273
Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:
2018
Number
Teachers : : o 36
Administration and support 65
Management 6
B 107
The number of persons employed, expressed-as @ full time equivalerit, was. as follows:
2018
Number
Teachers- _ 4 22
Administration and support 33
Management - : 6
81

Higher paid staff -

2017
£'000

560 -

47
99
40

746

746

2017

Number

2017
Number

2017
Number

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000
was: \
. 2018
Number
£70,001-£80000 - - 1
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10

Staft

Key-management personnel

The key management personnel of the' Acaderny Trust comprise the- Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer penslon contributions and

employer national insurance contributions) received by-key mariagement personnel for thekr services to the.
Academy Trust'was £279,511,

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more of the Trusteas has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust. The Chjef Executive Officer and othir staff Trustees only:receive remuneration in
respect of services they provide undenaking the-roles of Chief Executive Officer and staff members under ’thelr-
contracts-of empldyment, and not in respect ‘of their-services as Trustees.

The value of Trustees" remuneration and other benefits was:&s fallows:

J Taylor (Chief Executive Officer):
*  Remuneration £75,000 - £80,000 (2017: £60,000 - £65,000)
e  Employer's:pension contributions £10,000-£15,000 (2017: £5,600 - £10,000)

During the year, travel and subsistence payments:totaliing £Nil (2017: £10)-were réimbursed or- paid directly-to
No Trustees (2017: 1 Trustee).

Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are set qut within the related parties note.

Trustees and. officers insurance

The: Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s Risk.Protection Arangement (RPA), an
altemative to insurarice where UK govemment funds covér iosses: that arise. This scheme protects Trustees
and officers from .claims ansing from negligent:acts; errors or omlséions .occurring whilst.on Academy Trust

business, and provides cover up to-£10,000,000. Itis not possible:to quantlfy the Trustees and officars indemnity
element from the overall cost of the- RPA scheme,
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12

Tanglble fixed assets
Leasehold Computer  Fixtures, Motor Total
Land equipment fittings & vehicles
equipment

£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 1 September 2017 100 87 138 - 325
Transfer on conversion 110 104 225 441
-Additions - 18 3 - 21
At 31 August 2018 210 209 366 2 787
Depreciation
At 1 September 2017 1 28 28 - 57
Charge for the year : 2 69 73 - 144
At 31 August 2018 3 97 101 - 201
Net book value
At 31 August 2918 . 207 112 265 2 586
At 31 August 2017 - 99 59 110 - 268

Trie main land and buildings used by the Academy Trust, being the.schoo! sites at The Pilgrim School, St Mark's
C of E Primary School and St Margaret's at Troytown C of E Primary School are owned by the incorporated
Rochester Diocesan Board of Education. The Academy Trust occupies these rent free under a licence to
occupy contained in a supplemental agreement with The Secretary of State. The Trustees of the Academy Trust
have considered carefully the requirements of and guidance notes within the Academies Accounts Direction
Issued by the ESFA. They have concluded that, taking into account the nghts and obligations piaced upon the
Academy Trust by the licence to cccupy, the substance of the.arrangement is that this right to occupy does not
confer benefits that constitute a fixed asset. Accordingly they-have concluded that the Academy Trust's right to
occupy its buildings should not be recognised as a fixed asset on its balance sheet.

Playing fields are occupied on a leasehold basis under 125 year leases with Medway Council and Kent County
Council. The land values have been estimated by the trustees, taking into account the legal restrictions as to
usage.

Debtors o 2018 2017
. : £'000 £'000

Trade debtors , .. © . 1 .
VAT recoverable 19 2
Prepayments and accrued income _ 36 13
56 15
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14

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2018
’ £'000
Trade creditors 8
Other taxation-and social secunty
Other creditors -
Accruals and deferred income 78
87
Deferred-income 2018
£'000
Deferred income'is included within:
Creditors due within one year 53
Deferred income-at 1 September 2017 8
Released from previous years (18)
Resources deferred in the year 53
Deferred income at 31 August 2018 53

2017

£'000

16
15

63

2017

£000

18

‘1:8._

Deferred income. relates to £40k (2017: £18k) of Universal Infant Free' School Meals income received-in. the’
current period that relates to 2018/19, £11k (2017: £Nil). of Devolved: Formula Capital and £2k (2017: £Nif) of

other incoms in advance.
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Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2017 income Expenditure transfers 2018
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 12 2,127 (2,168) - (29)
Other DfE / ESFA grants 40 228 (149) - 119
Pupil Premium 10 181 (161) - 10
Other government grants - 143 (143) - -
Other restricted funds - 5 - 5) -
Pension reserve . (744) - (800) 407 (1.137)
(682) 2,664 (3,421) 402 (1,037)
Restricted fixed asset funds }
Transfer-on conversion 242 - 329 - 571
DfE group capital grants 26 20 (33) - 13
Capital expenditure from GAG
and other funds . : - - 2) § 3
i [ERS S— ——— — — ——
268 20 294 5 587
Total restrlctadlfgnds {414) 2,684 (3,127) 407 (450)
Unrestricted funds
General funds - 132 {46) - 86
Total funds ' 414) 2,816 (3.173) 407 (364)

1

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The Restricted. General Funds are used to fund the general opereting costs of the Academy Trust.

1

The Restricted LGPS.Fund represents the Academy Trust's share of the LGPS Pension Fund deficit.

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund represents investment in fixed assets, net of related depreciation. Unspent
capltal grants are also held in this fund and their use is restricted to the capital projects for which the grant was
paid.

A_5'5_
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16 Funds:

Comparative information In respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at
19 September
2016
£000
Restricted general funds
.General Annual Grant (GAG) -
Other DIE / ESFA grants -
Pupil Premium -
Ottier govemmerit grants -
Pension reserve .
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion -
DfE group capital grants -
Total restricted funds: -
Unrestricted funds
General funds -
Total funds .

Income

£000

670
92
30
48

37

882

Expenditure
£000

(658)
(52)
(20)
(48)

(665)

(1,441)

242
19

281

(1,180)

(37)

(1,217)

Gains,
losses and
transfers
£'000

{79)

Balance at

"31 August

2017
£:000

12
.40
10

(744)
(682)
242

26

268

(414)

-66 -
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15 Funds

A current year 12 months and prior year 12 months combined position is as follows:

Balance at
19 September
2016
£000

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) .
Other DfE / ESFA grants -
Pupil Premium .
Other govermnment grants -
Other restricted funds -
Pension reserve x -

] e .
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion -
DfE group.capital grants . -
Capital expenditure from GAG
and other funds: - - - - : -

Total restricted funds .

1 . ——c

Unrestricted funds
General funds : -

Totalfunds - o .

income Expenditure

£'000

2,797
320
191
189

3,529

169

3,698

£'000

(2.826)
(201)
(181)
(189)

(1.465)

(4,862)

571
(14)

@

§55

——cony

(4,307)

(83

(4,380)

Gains,
losses and
transfers
£'000

(5)
328

323

328

Balance at
31 August
2018
£'000

(29)
119
10

(1,137)

(1,037)

571
13

3

587

(450)

86

(364)

’:57 -
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Total funds analysis by academy

2018
Fund balances at 31 August 2018 were-aliocated as follows: £000
St Margaret's at Troy Town C of E-Primary-School (34)
St Mark's C of E Primary School 43
The Pilgrim Schoal 35
Central services 142
Total before fixed assets fund.and pension reserve 188
Restricted fixed asset fund 587
Pension reserve (1,137)
Total funds (364)

2017
£'000

62

82

268
(744)

———

(414)

St Margaret's.at Troy Town C of E Primary School had-a net deficit.of £34k on revenue funds because of the.
£15k local authority clawback relating to historic invoices, as part of reconciliation; the loss of the Sure Start
centre income through relocation; investment made in.schoo! improvement, supported. by the Academy Trust:

The Academy Trust is taking the following actionsto-feturn the academy fo surplus:

Stafﬁng festructures;

Ongoing cost control measures to manage and réduce the deficit,

Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and Othersupport Educational Other costs

educational  staff costs supplies excluding
support staff deprecjation
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

‘St Margaret's at Troy Town C of E
Primary School 697 147 57 178
St Mark's C of E Primary School 367 66: 29 108
The Pilgrim School 726, 161 48, 203
Central services | _ 88 21 3 24
1,878 395 137 511

Continued investment in schoo! improvement-and focus on pupil recruitment-and retention.

Regular tmonitoring and oversight of budgets and performance against budgets at central Trust leve!;

Total

£'000

1,079
568
1,138
136

2,821

-58 -
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16  Analysis of net assets between funds

17

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Fund balances at 31 August 2018 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 586 586
Current assets 86 187 1 274
Creditors falling due within one year - (87) - 87)
Defined benefit pension liability . (1,137) - (1,137)
Total net assets 86 (1,037) 587 (364)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds. General Fixed asset Funds
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fund balances at 31 August 2017 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets . - 268 268
Current assets - 127 - 127
Creditors falling due within-one year - (85) - (65)
Defined benefit pension liability - (744) . (744)
Total net asget_s ‘ - {682) 268 (414)

Pension and slmllar obllgations

‘The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schémes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme

England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for non-teaching staff which is managed by Kent County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
actuarial.valuation of the TPS:related to the period ended 31 March 2012, and that of the LGPS related to the
period ended 31 March 2016:

Contributions arﬁdunting,to £35k (2017: £15k) ware payable to the-schemes at 31 August 2018 and are included
within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies
and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change
of contract, aithough they are able to opt out.

The TPS Is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on.a ‘pay as you go'basis - these contributions along
with those made'by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid
by public funds provided by Parliament.

-569-
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Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension-Scheme

The Government Actuary, using nofrial actuaria) prlnclples -conducts a formal actuarial review of thie TPS in
accordance with'the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury. The aim of the review isto specify the level of future-contributions. Actuarial scheme vaiuations
are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many cther factors. The
latest actuarial vatuation of the: TPS.was.carried. out as-af-31 March 2012 and in accordance with'the Public
Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions:2014. The: valuation:repoit was published by
trie Department for Education on 9 June 2014.

The key elements of the.valuation and subsequent consultation are:

s employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge

s total scheme liabilities (penstons currently [d payment-and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £191,500 million; and notional assets. (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional
past service deficit of £14,800 rillion, .

¢ anemployer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be-applied to future valuations

.

the assumed real rate-of returh is 3.0% in.excess of prices and 2% in excess.of earnings. The rate of
real earnings growth is assumed:to be 2:75%. The assunied nominal rate of retum is 5.06%

The TPS valuationfor 2012 determined.an empioyer rate of 16. 4%, which was payablé from Sepfember.2015.
The next valuation of the TPS.is. currently underway based on April 2018 data, whereupon the employer
contribution rate is. expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 April 2019.

The.employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the.period. amounted fo £168k (2017: £56k).

‘A copy ofthe valuation report.and supporting documentation is an'the Teachers' Pensions wabsite.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS. is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has. accounted for its. contnbuﬁons to the scheme as.if it were a defined contribution scheme:
The Academy Trust hias set out'above the information available on the:scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered -
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The-agreed contribution rates for future years are 20.0% for
employers and 5.5% to 12.5% for employess.

The LGPS obligation relates to the. employees of the Academy Trust who were employees transferred as part

of the conversion from the maintained school (as described in note:22) together with new employees who joined

the scheme in the period. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on coriversion represents
_ thelr cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the Academy Trust at the-balance shest date,

Parliament has agreed, at the: request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantée that, inthe event '
of academy closure; outstnnding Local Govermnment Pension Stheme liabliities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force:on 18 July 2013

<80~
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Tota! contributions made 2018 2017
£'000 £'000

Employer's contributions 117 43
Employees’ contributions 33 12
Total contributions 150 55
Principal actuarial assumptions 2018 2017
% %

Rate of Increase in salaries 3.8 42
Rate of inbrease'fpr pensions in payment/inflation 2.3 27
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.7 28

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements-in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2018 2017
. o Years Years
Retiring today
- Males L _ 231 23.0
- Females Co ' 25.2 25.1
Retiring in 20 years
-Males _ 25.3 25.2
-Females o 275 274

camemwe 0 sreaaco

Scheme liabilities have been measured at £2,599k. In the event that certain key assumptions were to change
as described, the scheme liabilities would have been measured as follows:

2018. 2017

C ‘ £'000 £000

Discount rate + 0.1% ' 2,528 1,326

Discountrate- 0.1% . 2672 1,403
Mortality assumption + 1 year 2,682 4,408 -

Martality assumption - 1 year 2,519 1.322

Salary rate + 0.1% . 2,613 1,374

Salary rate - 0.1% 2,585 1,355

Pensions rate + 0.1% 2,659 1,363

Pensions rate - 0.1% 2,541 1,336
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Defined benefit pension scheme net liability

Scheme assets
Scheme obligations

Net liability

The Academy Trust's share of the assets In the scheme

Equities
Bonds

Gilts

Cash
Property
Other assets

Total market value of assets -

The actual retum on scheme assets was £57,000.(2017:'£81,000).

Ambount recognised in the Statement of Financlal Activities

Current service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total operating charge

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2017
Obligations.acquired 6n conversio
Current service cost :
Interest cost

Employee contributions

Actuarial (gain)loss

Benefits pald

At 31 August 2018

1,462
(2,599)

(1.137)

-2018
Fair value
£'000

.996:
130
1
‘45
181
99
1,462

e

2018
£000
265,
(34)
87

208

(1.364)

(744)

2017
Fair value
£000

436

80
20
76
24

620

2017
ﬁ!o-oa

83
(12)
26

97
2018
£000

1,364
1,257
265
67
33
(384)
3

2,589
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18

19

Changes in the falr value of the Academy. Trust's share of. scheme assets

At 4 September 2017

Assets acquired on conversion
Interest income

Actuarial gain

Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Beneafits paid

At 31 August 2018

Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

2018

£000
Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the Statement of Financial
Activities) (357)
Adjusted for: " ..
Net deficit on conversion to academy 108
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA and other capital income {20)
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 148
Defined benefit pension net finance cost 33
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 144
(Increase) in debtors (4%)
Increase in creditors - 22
Net cash p(ovld'oq by operating activities 37

-——

Commitments under operating leases

2018
£'000

620
638

23

"7
33
O

1,462

2017
£000

(335)

232
w
40
14
57
(15)
65

51

At 31 August 2018 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases was:

2018

£000

Amounts due within one year 3
Amounts due in two and five years 4
7

2017
£'000
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21

Related party transactions.

No-related party transactions took place in the period of'account other than certain Trustees' remuneration and
expenses already disclogsed in note 8.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company-undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of

It being-wound up while-he or-she is-a-member; or within-one.yéar after he or she ceases to'be a memibér, stich
amount-as may be required, not: exceedlng £10or the.debts.and liabilities contracted before he or she ceases

to be.a member.
Conversion to an acade,r,ﬁy

On 01 Septernber 2017 and 01 November 2017 the. St Margaret's at Troy Town C of E Primary School and St
Mark's C of E Primary School joined the Academy Trust under the-Academies Act 2010 and ali the operallons
and-assets-and liabilities were transfetred to The Piigrim Multi Acadery Trust from the Medway and Kent t.ocal
Authorities: for £nil consideration..

The transfers. have been accounted-for as:a combination that is in substance a gift. The assats and liabilities
transferred were valued- attheir fair values-and recognised in the balance. sheet.under the appropriate headings
with-a correspondnng amount recognised:in Charitable activities. - transfer from local authority on conversion.
in the.Statement of Financial Activities.

The following table sets out the fair values.of the‘idéntifiable assets and liabilities transferred and'an analysis
of their recognition in the statement of-financial acfivities.

Academy Location Date of conversion
StMargarst's at Troy Town C of E Primary Medway -1 September.2017
School
St Mark's C-of E Primary Scheol Kent 1 November 2017

2018
Net assets transferred: £000
Leasehold land and buildings 116
Other tangible fixed assets ' _ 331
Cash 70
LGPS pension. surplus/(deficit) : (619)

(108)
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Unrestricted

Funds

Funds surplus/{deficit) transferred: £'000
Fixed assets funds -
LGPS pension funds -
Other funds 70
70

Restricted funds:

General
£'000

(618)

(619)

Fixed asset
£000

441

-85-

Total
2018
£'000
441
(619)
70

(108)



